# **Clark and Madeira Family Papers**

**UPT 50 C592** 

Finding aid prepared by Norma Rosado under the direction of J.M. Duffin.

Last updated on October 25, 2013.

University of Pennsylvania, University Archives and Records Center

# **Table of Contents**

Summary Information	3
Biography/History	3
Scope and Contents	5
Arrangement	6
Administrative Information	7
Controlled Access Headings	7
Collection Inventory	9
Edward White Clark (1828-1904)	9
Mary Todhunter Sill Clark (1835-1908)	13
Joseph Sill (1801-1868)	14
Marion Clark Madeira (1868-1938)	15
Edward Walter Clark, Jr. (1857-1946)	21
Louis Cephas Madeira, Sr. (1819-1896)	21
Louis Childs Madeira, Jr. (1853-1929)	22
Crawford C. Madeira (1894-1967)	23
Edward Walter Madeira (1893-1956)	24
Elizabeth Madeira (1906-2001)	25
Edith Madeira (1865-c.1930)	26

# **Summary Information**

**Repository** University of Pennsylvania: University Archives and Records Center

**Creator** Clark Family.

**Creator** Madeira Family.

Title Clark and Madeira Family Papers

Call number UPT 50 C592

**Date [bulk]** 1850-1925

**Date [inclusive]** 1820-1942

**Extent** 6 cubic feet

**Language** English

**ABSTRACT** The Clark and Madeira Family Papers offers a perspective on the personal,

social, and professional lives of a rich and vibrant upper class Philadelphia family in the late nineteenth to early twentieth century. It is reflective their affection for learning, travel as well as their undying affection for each

other.

# **Biography/History**

The Clark Family

Edward W. Clark (1828-1904)

Edward White Clark was a wealthy Philadelphia businessman and patron of the arts. He was born in 1828 in Providence, Rhode Island, the eldest son of Enoch White and Sarah Crawford (Dodge) Clark. He came to Philadelphia with his parents in 1837 and was educated locally at Central High School. Soon after graduation he joined his father's thriving banking firm, E.W. Clark & Company. In 1849, at the age of 21, he was made a partner. In 1856, when his father died, he became the senior partner in the company. For forty-eight years he continued as head of the firm. During this time he was also a director of several major Philadelphia corporations, including the Fidelity Trust Company, First National Bank and the Lehigh Coal & Navigation Company. His huge success in his business endeavors made it possible for him to be a benefactor of the University Museum of the University of Pennsylvania.

Edward gained an appreciation of Middle Eastern archaeology during his travels to Egypt, Syria and Jerusalem in the 1850s. As a result, he and his brother, Clarence H., jointly endowed a research professorship in Assyriology for the Department of Semitics; this was the first step the university took in creating the museum. Additionally, Edward and Clarence H., along with other university benefactors, underwrote the first expedition initiated by the university. Edward was considered for the position of trustee of the University, but apparently declined to accept the honor. There can be no doubt that E. W. Clark was one of the founders of the University Museum.

As a benefactor for the University of Pennsylvania, he contributed greatly to furthering research for the anthropology and archaeology departments. The additions to the University of Pennsylvania Museum of Anthropology and Archaeology can be directly related to acquisitions made during the expedition to Babylonia, which he financed. According to Board of Trustee Minutes dated December 6, 1887 "the sums paid...as set fourth between E. W. Clark, Esq., Treasurer for the purpose of sending an exploring expedition to Babylonia...All finds which can be exported are to be brought to the City of Philadelphia and to become the property of University of Pennsylvania, provided the said University furnish suitable accommodations for the same in a fire-proof building;"

Edward was an active member of Germantown society, where he made his home in the 1860s. He belonged to several socially exclusive clubs, particularly the local country club, and the Germantown Cricket Club. He was actively engaged with the Unitarian Church of Philadelphia and Germantown as evidenced in his collection of sermon books and in his diaries. He married Mary Todhunter (Sill) Clark (1835-1908) in 1855. Her parents, Joseph Sill and Jane Todhunter, emigrated from England to Philadelphia in the early nineteenth century. She was born 1835 in Philadelphia. Along with her husband, Mary was active in the Philadelphia and Germantown Unitarian Church. They had five sons and one daughter. Edward Walter Clark, Jr. (1857-1946; B.S. 1877) was the eldest child, Clarence Munroe Clark (1859-1937; A.B. 1878), Joseph Sill Clark (1861-1956; A.B 1881, A.M. 1884, LL.B. 1885), Herbert L. Clark (1865-1940; A.B. 1887, Harvard), Marion Clark (1868-1939), and Percy H. Clark (1874-1965; LL.B. 1899), was the youngest of six children.

Edward Walter Clark, Jr. (1857-1946; B.S. 1877)

Edward, the eldest child of Edward and Mary, was a competitive athlete and sailor. As a young man he played cricket in several local leagues and played internationally. In his later years he enjoyed racing and financing sloops for professional competitions. As a businessman he was equally active and successful. He was a senior member in his father's firm E. W. Clark & Company until his death in 1946. As an alumnus of University of Pennsylvania, he made many contributions throughout his lifetime. Marion Clark Madeira (1868-1939)

Marion Clark, Edward and Mary's only daughter, was born on March 23, 1868. Marion married Louis Childs Madeira, Jr., son of Louis Cephas Madeira, Sr. They had two sons, Edward Walter Madeira (1893-1956), Crawford Clark Madeira (1894-1967) and one daughter Elizabeth Madeira (1906-2001). Another child Mary Madeira (1895-1895) died in infancy. Marion dedicated her time to social causes. She contributed greatly to University of Pennsylvania's School of Social Work.

The Madeira Family

Louis Cephas Madeira Sr. (1819-1896)

Louis was born in 1819. According to the 1880 federal census, Louis' occupation was a fire insurance agent. He married Adeline Laura Powell in 1850. They had six children, Kate P. Louis C., Henry, Adeline, Percy and Edith.

Louis Childs Madeira, Jr. (1853-1930; B.S. (g.c.) 1899, LL. D (hon.) 1926)

Louis, the eldest son of Louis and Adeline, was born in Philadelphia in 1853. He attended the Episcopal Academy and entered the University of Pennsylvania as a member of the Class of 1872. He left the university as a sophomore and began work as a civil engineer for several rail road companies. Beginning in 1877 he entered the insurance business and worked for several companies including, Madeira, Hill & Company. He married Marion Clark and had three children, Edward Walter, Crawford, and Elizabeth. A fourth child, Mary, died in infancy. He had an active social life in Philadelphia and Germantown and belonged several local clubs. In 1890 he appointed commodore status in the Schuylkill Navy. He served as an Alumni Trustee of the University of Pennsylvania from 1910 to 1930 and was active in the Athletic Association of the university. Following in the legacy of his father-in-law, he served on the Board of Managers of the University Museum.

Edward Walter Madeira (1893-1956; A.B. 1913, LL. B. 1915)

Edward was born in 1893. He was the eldest son of Louis and Marion. As an undergraduate he served as class president and a member of the varsity crew. He continued his studies as a law student at University of Pennsylvania and graduated in 1915. After graduation he began a career in the military. He served as a Private 1st Troop, Philadelphia City Cavalry, during the Mexican border war from 1916-1917. While stationed there he gained a great deal of knowledge about handling horses. His knowledge brought him a promotion in the U.S. Army while he served in World War I as Captain, Headquarters Troop, 79th Division from 1918-1919. After his military stint, Edward served as assistant to the vice provost of University of Pennsylvania from 1922-1926. He married Alice Chapman Thompson Downs and together they had one child, Edward Walter Madeira, Jr. and raised a second son, Norton Downs III, from Mrs. Downs' first marriage. Edward Walter Madeira died at the age of 64 in 1956.

Crawford C. Madeira (1894-1967; A.B. 1916)

Crawford was born February 23, 1894 and died in January 8, 1967. He was active in the University of Pennsylvania's soccer team, football and varsity crew. Crawford served many years in the U.S. Army as a Lieutenant of the 16th Cavalry. After his duty in the 16th Cavalry he served in both World Wars. As a civilian he served as vice president of several coal businesses. And was an active member of the University's Alumni Society and eventually elected President. He continued his support later in life giving generously to the Department of Athletics. He married Sarah Claypoole and had three sons, Crawford Clark Madeira, Jr., Lewis Neilson Madeira, and Harry R. Madeira.

Elizabeth Madeira (1906-2001)

Elizabeth was the youngest child of Marion and Louis Madeira, Jr. She continued her mother's legacy of donating money and time to social causes and contributed to the University of Pennsylvania's School of Social Work. She resided in Bryn Mawr, Pennsylvania and never married.

Edith Madeira (1865-1951)

Edith was born in Philadelphia in 1865. She was the youngest child of Louis and Adeline Madeira. She was trained as a nurse and served during World War I in Palestine for the American Red Cross.

# **Scope and Contents**

The collection offers a perspective on the personal, social, and professional lives of the Clark and Madeira families in the late nineteenth to early twentieth century. It is reflective of a rich and vibrant piece of upper class Philadelphia family history. It describes a family whose relationship with the University of Pennsylvania spans several generations. Their affection for learning, travel as well as their undying affection for each other is apparent in their writings.

The bulk of the collection consists of sixty-four volumes of diaries and journals written by four members of the family. The primary diarist was Edward White Clark, whose writings extend to fifty-three volumes of dairies and journals. The entries are consistent and detail his daily activities from the year 1851 to 1863 and 1871 until his death in 1904. His journals begin with a description of Egypt and the Holy Land; his diaries cover his personal and social life in daily detail, such as his comments on sermons at the Germantown and Philadelphia Unitarian churches and the opening of the Centennial Exposition in Philadelphia. There are also brief mentions of his business career and of the Civil War. Three volumes of diaries, covering the years 1870-1871 and 1904-1905, were written by Edward's wife, Mary Todhunter Sill Clark. Two volumes of diaries, covering the years 1883 and 1890, were written by Edward's daughter, Marion Clark Madeira. Six volumes of diaries, covering the years 1873 - 1876, were written by Edward's grandson, Louis Childs Madeira, Jr. Letters and other manuscripts are also included in the collection, documenting the lives of Mary Todhunter Sill Clark, Marion Clark Madeira, son-in-law Louis Childs Madeira, Sr., Louis Childs Madeira, Jr., and grandsons Edward Walter Madeira and Crawford C. Madeira.

Marion C. Madeira's collection includes manuscript letters and photographs from her children, primarily from Edward and Crawford, but also from Louis. They span a few years from 1916 -1919, which includes their service in the 1st Troop, Philadelphia City Cavalry during General Pershing's punitive expedition to Mexico; the correspondence documents military life during the turn of the twentieth century. Her collection documents her creative and artistic expression. This is evident by the numerous poems, conundrums and scrapbook postcards she created throughout her lifetime.

The collection also includes genealogical research and notes detailing the Clark and Madeira family. There is material and correspondence regarding the Clark family's ancestors in England dating back to the fourteenth century. A family history book includes several personal items from the Madeira family children, such as a locket of hair. Included with the personal items are several noteworthy legal documents such as the copies of the wills several Clark and Madeira family members. Another noteworthy item in the collection includes Edith Madeira's (1865-c. 1951) transcribed correspondence during her service with the American Red Cross in Palestine, which span from 1917 to 1919.

## Arrangement

The Clark and Madeira collection is organized into the following series and sub-series: Edward White Clark (1828-1904) papers: diaries, c. 1850-1863, 1871-1904, genealogical research, c. 1900, Historical Society of Pennsylvania documents, 1855, legal documents, 1904, literature, c.1840, c 1855, memorial books, 1867, 1904, newspaper articles, c. 1855, travel diaries 1881, 1888; Mary Todhunter Sill Clark (1835-1908) papers: diaries, 1870-1871, legal documents, 1855, 1908, inventory books c. 1900; Joseph Sill (1801-1868) papers: his diary published in a Philadelphia newspaper, 1831-1845, legal documents, 1825, memorial books, 1854; Marion Clark Madeira (1868-1938) papers: correspondence 1880-1939, diaries, 1883, 1890, 1899, family Christmas items, 1894, 1899, 1909, 1920, 1923, 1925, 1926, 1929,

1933-1939, invitations, 1918, 1926, 1930, legal documents, 1939, memorial books, 1892, 1914, music related items, c. 1900, 1910, 1938, newspaper articles, 1939, notebooks, 1892-1909, c.1900, photographs, 1856, c. 1879, 1900, 1907, poems, c. 1900, and sermons 1872, 1879, 1882; Edward Walter Clark, Jr. (1857-1946) papers: correspondence 1898-1901, genealogical research c. 1900; Louis C. Madeira, Sr. (1819-1896) papers: legal documents, 1869, 1890; Louis C. Madeira, Jr. (1853-1929) papers: correspondence, 1880, 1889, c.1890, 1896, 1909-1923, diaries, 1873-1876, 1912, 1916, education, 1866, 1868, 1894, 1906, legal documents, 1929; Crawford C. Madeira (1894-1967) papers: correspondence c. 1915; Edward Walter Madeira (1893-1956) papers: articles, c. 1900, legal documents, 1917, military service 1915-1916; Elizabeth Madeira (1906-2001) papers: correspondence, 1916, 1918, 1938-1939, 1942, diary, 1930; Edith Madeira (1865-1930) papers: transcribed letters. With the exception of the diaries, all the sub-series are arranged alphabetically by name of subject or

# **Administrative Information**

University of Pennsylvania, University Archives and Records Center Finding aid prepared by Norma Rosado under the direction of J.M. Duffin.

correspondent. The diary sub-series are arranged chronologically.

#### **Access Restrictions**

Access to collections is granted in accordance with the Protocols for the University Archives and Records Centers.

#### **PROVENANCE**

Gift of David Clark Madeira, great-great-great-grandson of E.W. Clark (1828-1904). The collection passed into the hands of David Clark Madeira in the following manner. Marion Clark (1867-1939), daughter of Edward, married Louis Childs Madeira (1853-1930) (A.B. 1872) and they became the parents of three children: Edward W. Madeira, Crawford Clark Madeira, and Elizabeth Madeira. Elizabeth Madeira (1906-2001) did not marry. She inherited the collection from her grandparents. She was active at Penn in the governance of the School of Social Work. Her older brother, Crawford Clark Madeira (1894-1967) (B.S. 1916), was very active in the General Alumni Society of the University and was eventually elected its President, thereby serving as a Trustee of the University. He was the father of Lewis Neilson Madeira (Class of 1943, non-grad.); the grandfather of Lewis Neilson Madeira, Jr. (A.B. 1967), and the great-grandfather of David Clark Madeira (A.B. 1989; M.G.A. 1996). When Elizabeth Madeira died, the collection passed to her great-great-nephew, David Clark Madeira, who donated it to the University Archives on 29 April 2004.

# **Controlled Access Headings**

#### **CORPORATE NAME(S)**

- Centennial Exhibition. (1876: Philadelphia, Pa.)
- United States. Army. -- General subdivision--History; Chronological subdivision--Punitive Expedition into Mexico, 1916.;
- University of Pennsylvania.

#### **GEOGRAPHIC NAME(S)**

- Egypt--Description and travel.
- Palestine--Description and travel.
- Philadelphia (Pa.)--Social life and customs--19th century.

#### PERSONAL NAME(S)

- Clark, Edward Walter, Jr., 1857-1946
- Clark, Edward White, 1828-1904
- Clark, Mary Toddhunter Sill, 1835-1908
- Madeira, Crawford C., 1894-1967
- Madeira, Edith, 1865-1930
- Madeira, Edward Walter, 1893-1956
- Madeira, Elizabeth, 1906-2001
- Madeira, Louis C., Jr., 1853-1929
- Madeira, Louis C., Sr., 1819-1896
- Madeira, Marion Clark, 1868-1938
- Sill, Joseph, 1801-1868

#### SUBJECT(S)

- Philadelphia City Cavalry.
- Unitarian Church--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.
- Upper class--Pennsylvania--Philadelphia.
- World War, 1914-1918--Medical care.--Palestine
- World War, 1914-1918--War work--Red Cross.

# **Collection Inventory**

# **EDWARD WHITE CLARK (1828-1904).**

### DIARIES.

	Box	Folder
1845.	1	1
1851-1852.	1	2
1852.	1	3
1852.	1	4
1852.	1	5
1852.	1	6
1852-1853.	1	7
1853.	1	8
1853.	1	9
1853.	1	10
1853.	1	11
1853.	1	12

1855-1856.	1	13	
1856.	1	14	
1856-1857.	1	15	
1863.	1	16	
1871.	1	17	
1872.	1	18	
1873.	1	19	
1873-1874.	1	20	
1874.	1	21	
1874-1875.	1	22	
1876.	2	1	
1877.	2	2	
1878.	2	3	
1879.	2	4	
1880.	2	5	
1881.	2	6	
1882.	2	7	
1883.	2	8	
1884.	2	9	

1885.	2	10	
1886.	2	11	
1887.	2	12	
1888.	2	13	
1889.	2	14	
1890.	3	1	
1891.	3	2	
1892.	3	3	
1893.	3	4	
1894.	3	5	
1895.	3	6	
1896.	3	7	
1897.	3	8	
1898.	3	9	
1899.	3	10	
1900.	4	1	
1901.	4	2	
1902.	4	3	
1903.	4	4	

4	5	
Box	Folder	
4	6	
Box	Folder	
4	7	
4	8	
Box	Folder	
4	9	
Box	Folder	
4	10	
4	11	
	Box 4  Box 4  Box 4  A  Box 4	Box Folder 4 6  Box Folder 4 7 4 8  Box Folder 4 9  Box Folder 4 10

### MEMORIAL BOOKS.

Newspapers.  Box Folder Various articles, c. 1855.  Travel diary.  Box Folder  4 14		20.1	1 01001	
NEWSPAPERS.    Box   Folder     Arrious articles, c. 1855.	Edward White Clark, resolution from the Board of Managers of the University Museum, University of Pennsylvania, 1904.	4	12	
Box   Folder	William H. Furness Jr, prepared by Rev. William H. Furness, Sr., 1867.	4	13	
TRAVEL DIARY.  Box Folder  881. 4 15  888. 4 16  MARY TODHUNTER SILL CLARK (1835-1908).  DIARIES.	NEWSPAPERS.			
### TRAVEL DIARY.    Box   Folder		Box	Folder	
Box   Folder	Various articles, c. 1855.	4	14	
Box   Folder				
881. 4 15 888. 4 16  MARY TODHUNTER SILL CLARK (1835-1908).  DIARIES.	TRAVEL DIARY.			
MARY TODHUNTER SILL CLARK (1835-1908).  DIARIES.		Box	Folder	
MARY TODHUNTER SILL CLARK (1835-1908).  DIARIES.	1881.	4	15	
DIARIES.	1888.	4	16	
DIARIES.				
DIARIES.	Mary Torygram Cya Cyary (1925 1009)			
	WIAKY TUDHUNTER SILL CLARK (1055-1900).			
Box Folder	DIARIES.			
		Box	Folder	

Folder

17

18

4

4

Box

1870.

1871.

_	
FCAI	DOCUMENTS.

		Oversize
Marriage certificate, 19 January 1855.		OS 1
Last will and testament, 1908.	OS 6	23

### INVENTORY BOOKS.

	Box	Folder
Library, c. 1900.	4	19
Household items, c. 1900.	4	20

### JOSEPH SILL (1801-1868).

#### EXTRACTS OF DIARY PUBLISHED IN PHILADELPHIA NEWSPAPER.

	Box	Folder
1837-1845.	4	21
1831-1837.	4	22

### LEGAL DOCUMENTS.

	Oversize
Marriage certificate, 20 October 1825.	OS 2

### MEMORIAL BOOKS.

	Box	Folder
Joseph Sill, 1854.	5	1

# MARION CLARK MADEIRA (1868-1938).

#### CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder
Clark, Mary, c. 1894.	5	2
Claypoole, Sarah, c. 1915.	5	3
Drayton, F.R., 1917.	5	4
Duffield, C.W., 1922.	5	5
Falcuner, Martha, 1938.	5	6
Family Society of Philadelphia, 1928.	5	7
Furness, William H., 1891 1892.	5	8
Gardeur, Ella, 1898.	5	9
Geyelin and Company, 1925.	5	10
Grier, Mary, 1895.	5	11

Hale, Edward, 1890.	5	12	
Inter-Agency Council for Youth, 1938.	5	13	
Irwin, Agnes, 1894.	5	14	
Justice, William, 1912.	5	15	
Laleoner, Robert A., 1918.	5	16	
Longfellow, Samuel, 1880 1890.	5	17	
Lou, 1938.	5	18	
Lowell, A. Lawrence, 1911.	5	19	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1902.	5	20	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1916.	5	21	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1917.	5	22	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1918.	5	23	
Madeira, Edward Walter, 1916 1917.	5	24	
Madeira, Edward Walter, 1899.	5	25	
Madeira, Edward Walter, 1901.	5	26	
Madeira, Louis Childs, Jr., 1889.	5	27	
Madeira, Neddie, 1930.	5	28	
Merrick, J. Hartley, 1923.	5	29	
Neilson, Clara Augusta, 1917.	5	30	

Steventh, Sara, 1919.	5	31
Todh[unter?], Pat, 1937.	5	32
Vincent, George F., c. 1900.	5	33
Wannamaker, John, 1918.	5	34
Wister, Annis Lu, 1896.	5	35

### DIARIES.

	Box	Folder	
1883-1899.	5	36	
1890.	5	37	

### FAMILY CHRISTMAS ITEMS.

	Box	Folder
1894.	5	38
1899.	5	39
1909.	5	40
1920.	5	41
1923.	5	42
1925.	5	43
1926.	5	44

1929.	5	45
1933.	5	46
1934.	5	47
1935.	5	48
1936.	5	49
1937.	5	50
1938.	5	51
1939.	5	52

### INVITATIONS.

	Box	Folder
Crawford C. Madeira wedding to Sarah Claypoole, 1918.	5	53
Edward Walter Madeira wedding to Alice Thompson Downs, 1926.	5	54
White House Conference on Child Health and Protection, 1930.	5	55

### LEGAL DOCUMENTS.

	Oversize	Folder	
Last will and testament, 1939.	OS 6	24	

### MEMORIAL BOOKS.

	Box	Folder	
Elizabeth Lean Head, 1914.	5	56	
Samuel Longfellow, 1892.	5	57	
MUSIC RELATED ITEMS.			
	Box	Folder	
Songs, c. 1900.	5	58	
Musical Fund Society of Philadelphia history book, 1910.	5	59	
Play Bill, 1938.	5	60	
NEWSPAPER ARTICLES.			
	Box	Folder	
1939.	5	61	
NOTEBOOKS.			
	Box	Folder	
Children's record book, 1892-1909.	5	62	
Genealogical book, c. 1900.	5	63	
Sketchbook, c. 1900.	5	64	

PHOTOGRAPHS.

Oversize

Print of W. H. Furness, 1856.		OS 3	
	Oversize		
Adolescence male [unknown], 1907.	5	65	
Family photos, c. 1879 1900.	5	66	
POEMS.	D	F 11	
	Box	Folder	
Poems and conundrums, c. 1900.	5	67	
SERMONS.	Box	Folder	
A Discourse by Samuel Longfellow, May 1879.	5	68	
A Discourse by Samuel Longfellow, October 1879.	5	69	
A Christmas Sermon by Samuel Longfellow, January 1882.	5	70	
A Sermon by Samuel Longfellow, May 1882.	5	71	
A Discourse Preached to the Unitarian Society of Germantown by Samuel Longfellow, June 1882.	5	72	
A Discourse Given in the Unitarian Church, Germantown, November 1887.	5	73	
Consideration Addressed to Trinitarians in Evidence that the Apostolic and	5	74	

Primitive Church was Unitarian by Rev. Joseph Priestly, 1872.

# EDWARD WALTER CLARK, JR. (1857-1946).

#### CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder
Todhunter Sill, Mary, 1899.	5	75
Wilberforce, R., 1898 1901.	5	76

#### GENEALOGICAL RESEARCH.

	Box	Folder
Family chart, c. 1900.	5	77
Family plot in Laurel Hill Cemetery, c. 1900.	5	78

# LOUIS CEPHAS MADEIRA, SR. (1819-1896).

#### LEGAL DOCUMENTS.

	Box	Folder	
Case book, United States vs. 444 Hogshead 33 Tierces containing "Syrup of Sugar," Etc., Imported per Brig Lill, from Manzanillo, Cuba, 1869.	5	79	
		Box	Folo
Marriage certificate, 16 October 1890.		OS 4	

# LOUIS CHILDS MADEIRA, JR. (1853-1929).

### CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder	
Christmas humorous letter, c. 1890.	5	80	
Davis, Richard Harding, c. 1890.	5	81	
Grew, Mary, 1880.	5	82	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1916.	5	83	
Prominent businessmen and artists, 1909-1923.	5	84	
Schuylkill Navy, 1896.	5	85	
Stokes Brothers Builders, 1914.	5	86	
University of Pennsylvania, 1889.	5	87	
Various individuals regarding conferring of honorary degree from the University of Pennsylvania, 1926.	5	88	

### DIARIES.

	Box	Folder
1873.	5	89
1874.	5	90
1875.	5	91

1875.	5	92
1875-1876.	5	93
1876.	5	94
1912-1916.	5	95

### EDUCATION.

	Box	Folder
Academy of the Protestant Episcopal Church report cards, 1866.	6	1
Academy of the Protestant Episcopal Church commendation, 1868.	6	2
University of Pennsylvania reunion items, 1894.	6	3
University of Pennsylvania honorary program for Provost Charles Curtis Harrison, 1906.	6	4

# LEGAL DOCUMENTS.

	Oversize	Folder
Last will and testament, 1929.	OS 6	25

**CRAWFORD C. MADEIRA (1894-1967).** 

CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder	
[?], Bess (aunt), c. 1915.	6	5	

### EDWARD WALTER MADEIRA (1893-1956).

#### ARTICLES.

	Box	Item
"Packets and Clippers", c. 1900.	6	6

### LEGAL DOCUMENTS.

	Box	Folder	
Power of attorney, 1917.	6	26	

#### MILITARY SERVICE.

#### PHOTOGRAPHS.

	Box	Folder
Edward W. Madeira and others, c. 1916.	6	7
Military campaign and life on Texas border, negatives (1), c. 1916.	6	8
Military campaign and life on Texas border, negatives (2), c. 1916.	6	9

Military campaign and life on Texas border, negatives (3), c. 1916.	6	10	
Military campaign and life on Texas border, negatives (4), c. 1916.	6	11	
	Box	Folder	
Mexican currency, 1915.	6	12	
Thanksgiving Dinner menu, 20 November 1916.	6	13	
Extract from letter from Captain J. Franklin McFadden, 23 September 1916.	6	14	

### **ELIZABETH MADEIRA (1906-2001).**

### CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder	
Letters of condolence on death of Marion Madeira, 1938 1939.	6	15	
Madeira, Crawford C., 1918.	6	16	
Madeira, Edith, 1942.	6	17	
Madeira, Edward Walter, 1916.	6	18	
Withycombe, James, 1918.	6	19	

### DIARY.

Box Folder

	1930.	6	20
--	-------	---	----

# **EDITH MADEIRA (1865-C.1930).**

### CORRESPONDENCE.

	Box	Folder	
Transcript of letters describing service with the American Red Cross in Palestine, December 1917-July 1918.	6	21	
Transcript of letters describing service with the American Red Cross in Palestine, August 1918-February 1919.	6	22	